
HALFMOON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                                                                        MARCH 14TH, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                       PAGE 1 OF 4    

__________________________________  
Secretary 

 
1.    CALL TO ORDER 
      Chair Barbara Spencer called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.  Other Supervisors present were Andy Merritt, 

Ben Pisoni and Todd Kirsten. Staff present were Susan Steele, Township Manager; Amy Smith, Township Clerk; 
D.J. Liggett, CRPA; Tom Zilla, CPRA. Residents & others in attendance: Michael Straw & Donald Straw and Bob 
Eberhart.            

 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION     

Ms. Spencer announced there was an executive session held at the Board of Supervisors Special meeting on 
Monday, March 11th to discuss possible legal matters. Ms. Spencer commented a motion was made to accept 
the attorney’s legal opinion that the present lease program of the Township’s Open Space Preservation Program 
is in compliance with the 1999 referendum intent and language.  In addition, the Board of Supervisors will discuss 
the issues they wish the Open Space Board to work on at their March 28th meeting.  Ms. Spencer questioned 
whether there was a motion to accept the minutes of the special meeting.  
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Merritt moved to approve the special meeting minutes of March 11th, 2013; Mr. 
Kirsten requested a correction be made stating that Ms. Spencer made the motion to adjourn; Mr. 
Pisoni seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 
 

4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
There were no citizen comments. 
             

5. TREASURER’S REPORT      
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Kirsten moved to approve the Treasurer’s Report dated March 14th, 2013; Mr. Pisoni 
seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
6. BILLS LIST 

  
• MOTION:  Mr. Kirsten moved to approve the Bills List dated March 14th, 2013; Mr. Merritt 

seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 
 

7. MINUTES 
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Pisoni moved to approve the minutes dated February 28th, 2013; Mr. Kirsten 
seconded; Mr. Kirsten requested a few corrections; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
 

8. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE MOTION TO APPROVE CENTRE REGION CODE BOARD OF APPEALS 
MEMBERS AS FOLLOWS:   
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Merritt moved to approve Adam Fernsler, PE, 3 year term commencing on 2/15/13 to 
the core board; Alex Sahakian, 3 year term commencing on 2/15/13 to the property maintenance 
board and Ed Olson, AIA, 3 year term commencing 2/15/13 to the core board; Mr. Kirsten 
seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 

 
 

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE MOTION TO APPROVE FACILITY LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
HALFMOON TOWNSHIP AND HALFMOON LITTLE LEAGUE ORGANIZATION 

 Ms. Steele reviewed the dates and times specified in the agreement for Halfmoon Little League to lease both the 
upper and lower ball fields as well as Autumn Meadow Park field.   Ms. Steele commented that Ms. Yurchak 
recommends it is common to renew the lease agreement in 10 year increments.  Ms. Steele stated that Ms. 
Yurchak changed the wording of the name of the agreement so it did not imply that it is a tenant/landlord lease.  
Ms. Steele reviewed the maintenance and replacement of the facilities and commented replacement is at the 



HALFMOON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                                                                        MARCH 14TH, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                       PAGE 2 OF 4    

__________________________________  
Secretary 

discretion of the Board of Supervisors at budget time.  Ms. Steele reviewed the changes Mr. Hawbaker made on 
behalf of Halfmoon Little League regarding the General Indemnification clause and commented this was done to 
specify that this clause applied to members of HMLL or their guests and not just the general public using the park 
facilities.   

 
 Mr. Merritt questioned that once the lease is up after ten years, can the Board not approve a second lease.  Ms. 

Steele commented they could not unless HMLL was in default of the lease.  The Board commented they were 
okay with the ten year lease with the automatic option to renew.   

 
 Ms. Steele stated she requested that HMLL come each year to discuss maintenance issues or requests prior to 

budgeting discussions and same was in the Agreement.  Ms. Spencer questioned the use of the public restrooms 
in the Municipal Building.  Ms. Steele stated the municipal building restrooms were not part of the agreement.   

 
 Ms. Steele commented there will be no sub-leasing.  Other groups, such as Tri-County who runs fall ball, will have 

to reserve the fields if they are needed separately with the Township.  Ms. Spencer questioned who was using the 
lower field and lights while playing football.  Ms. Steele stated she spoke with the Bulldogs and informed them that 
the fields at Municipal Lane were only to be used for baseball but does not know if they were the ones playing that 
evening.  Mr. Hawbaker stated there was an error by HMLL providing keys for the lights.  Ms. Spencer stated she 
would like to remind HMLL that while there is a meeting there should be no parking where it is posted but 
commented that HMLL has been doing a good job with this.  Ms. Steele commented she could not guarantee 
there is enough room for everyone to park for Little League and if someone rents the building.  Parking in the 
municipal parking lot is on a first come first serve basis. 

 
 Ms. Steele commented that Mr. Hawbaker met with Mr. Piper to mark out the area for the new batting cage.  Mr. 

Pisoni questioned whether there was a need for the fields every single day and if they were used every day on the 
times they requested in the Agreement.  Mr. Hawbaker commented that there are 10 teams who have to share 
the fields and Sundays are hit and miss but a majority of the time they are being used.   

 
Ms. Steele stated that on August 1 all baseball fields will be closed for any use for maintenance.  Mr. Kirsten 
clarified the dates and times for each field usage.  Ms. Spencer questioned when the fields are available to the 
public.  Ms. Steele reviewed those times.  Mr. Kirsten commented that the fields would be open to use until Little 
League came.  Ms. Steele stated that the summer park program runs from 9-noon from June to July and have 
never run into a problem with this.  Mr. Hawbaker commented that in reality the fields would not be used until 
about 4 p.m. during the weekdays.  Mr. Pisoni stated that HMLL has done quite a bit for the fields but if they are 
not going to use them until later than don’t reserve the fields until they will be utilized so they are available to the 
public.  The times were changed on the agreement from 9 a.m. to 10 p.m. to 4 p.m. to 10 p.m. weekdays on both 
the upper and lower fields.  Mr. Kirsten reviewed some suggested changes and requested clarification of 
insurance coverage for visitors.  Mr. Hawbaker commented that Tri-County has an umbrella policy that is shared.   

 
• MOTION:  Mr. Kirsten moved to approve the facility lease agreement with Halfmoon Little League 

with the suggested changes to the times; Mr. Pisoni seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 
 
 
10. DISCUSSION REGARDING POSSIBLE COMMENTS TO FORWARD TO CENTRE REGION COG EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR BY 4/13, REGARDING CRPA’S IMPLEMENTATION PLAN TO DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE    
Ms. Liggett provided a draft comprehensive implementation element plan to review with the Board.  This plan 
discusses the strategy, goals and policies that will help define a collective vision of the region’s future.  Ms. Liggett 
discussed the strategy steps and explained the short term, mid-term & long term timeframes.  Ms. Liggett 
reviewed the land use metrics.  Ms. Liggett stated the CRPC will provide an annual report on the previous year’s 
actions.  Ms. Liggett stated comments should be provided to the COG Executive Director by April 27th, 2013.  Ms. 
Spencer stated she would like to see zoning on the short term strategy and anything addressing blight.  Ms. 
Liggett commented that the region does not see blight but does see vacant structures.  Ms. Liggett stated the 
Planning Commission is looking at the land use map and will be starting at R-1.  Mr. Kirsten commented that this 
is not strict and can be done based on how the municipality wants to see it implemented.   

   
11. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE MOTION TO APPROVE ADVERTISING FOR SEASONAL HELP FOUR (4) 

YOUTH LEADERS AND ONE (1) ADULT LEADER FOR SUMMER PARKS PROGRAM AT THE SALARIES OF 
$7.50 PER HOUR FOR THE YOUTH LEADERS AND $8.50 PER HOUR FOR THE ADULT LEADER 



HALFMOON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                                                                        MARCH 14TH, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                       PAGE 3 OF 4    

__________________________________  
Secretary 

 
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Merritt moved to approve advertising for seasonal help for four youth leaders and 
one adult leader for summer parks program at the salaries of $7.50 per hour for the youth leaders 
and $8.50 per hour for the adult leader; Mr. Pisoni seconded; Vote 4-0-0; Motion Carried. 

  
 
12. MANAGER’S REPORT 

Ms. Steele reviewed her written report.  Ms. Steele commented that she spoke to the County and they stated a 
municipality cannot place anything that is not a binding referendum as a question on the ballot.   
 
Ms. Steele stated she spoke to the County and the County stated the Commissioners are reviewing the possibility 
of splitting the Township into two voting precincts to accommodate complaints of long lines, handicap accessibility 
issues along with other issues.  Mr. Pisoni suggested having a sign made stating anyone having a physical 
disability should go to the front of the line.   
 
Ms. Steele met with the Port Matilda Fire Company and drafted a tentative agreement that has been forwarded to 
the Solicitor for review.  Ms. Steele invited the Port Matilda Fire Company to attend a meeting in June to discuss 
the agreement and answer any questions the board has.  Ms. Spencer stated the agreement was well done and 
well received and may be considered by the other municipalities.   
 
Ms. Steele reviewed the SR 550 temporary speed limit sign and semi permanent speed sensor implementation 
plan.  Ms. Steele stated Mr. Barr will be unable to get his tractor out of Municipal Lane and onto SR 550 with the 
ped crossing sign in the cross walk.  Ms. Steele suggested moving it out of the cross walk but still have it near the 
cross walk.  Ms. Spencer stated the board would like to hear from others.  Mr. Kirsten suggested checking the 
distance requirement it needs to be within the crosswalk.   
 
Ms. Steele commented that on the proposed official map there is a segment of township right of way that is to be 
used as a connector and Mr. Pisoni would like to know if the Supervisors would like him to prepare it for a 
possible trail in the future.   Mr. Pisoni stated there is a 50’ right of way between Shanelly Drive and Lutz Lane 
and at one time the Board discussed making this a connection between the two roads.  Mr. Pisoni commented the 
Upper Halfmoon Water Company will be installing a main there and would be digging around that area so if the 
Board wanted him to dig the trail he could do this while working on this area.  Mr. Kirsten questioned whether the 
surrounding homeowners have been notified.  Mr. Pisoni commented there was one homeowner who maintains 
this area and would prefer that there is no trail but realizes it is the townships property.  Ms. Liggett commented 
there was a letter sent to him and he requested that the township consider landscaping to keep citizens from 
walking through his yard.  Mr. Kirsten stated he would take this gentleman’s concerns into consideration.  Mr. 
Pisoni stated the UHWC will be starting this project April 8th and will be putting mains in for about a month.  Ms. 
Spencer stated this will cost the township monies and questioned whether this could be looked at to see if there 
could be a cost estimate on this project.  Ms. Steele commented Mr. Franson would be looking at the project so it 
would cost money to do that.  Mr. Kirsten stated he is not sure if he is willing to spend the money.  Mr. Pisoni 
stated he thinks the question is whether the Board wants the trail or not.  Mr. Pisoni stated the trail would be about 
600 feet.  Ms. Spencer stated she would like to see what is there.  Ms. Steele stated she can bring it back to the 
next meeting to give the Board some time to think about it.  Ms. Spencer questioned whether there were any 
grant monies available.  Ms. Steele stated grant monies for not available for small municipal pathways anymore 
unless they connect to another regional trail.     
 
Ms. Steele stated the Planning Commission will be putting together a white paper for the supervisors as to an 
implementation plan and options for implementing the Future Land Use Map as proposed in the draft Comp Plan.  
Ms. Steele thanked the Planning Commission for their hard work and leadership.   
 
Ms. Steele reviewed the summer park program schedule beginning June 17 through July 25th.   
 
Ms. Steele commented she, Trish Meek and D.J. Liggett will begin phasing the next three years worth of park 
amenities towards meeting with the DCNR for grant purposes.   
 
Ms. Steele stated the Park & Recreation Board will discuss what type of basket ball court they would like to see at 
Autumn Meadow Park.   



HALFMOON TOWNSHIP BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                                                                        MARCH 14TH, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES                                                                                                                       PAGE 4 OF 4    

__________________________________  
Secretary 

 
13. SUPERVISORS’ REPORT 
 

Ms. Spencer stated she attended the UBEH Cog meeting and there was discussion on the agreement that 
Halfmoon Township is negotiating with the Port Matilda Fire Company.  Ms. Spencer stated she spoke with Mr. 
Lee Pressler from the FCC who stated he would prefer that municipalities pay the Fire Company directly and not 
through the COG so they know who had paid and who they need to work with.  Ms. Steele commented that the 
Fire Company stated they would like whatever is politically easier. Ms. Steele stated that the Fire Company likes 
to be more involved in fighting fires and not worrying about politics.   Ms. Steele commented the Fire Company is 
in desperate need of volunteers so staff has put a request on the website and in an update requesting help with 
fundraising and also soliciting volunteer firemen.  Ms. Spencer discussed the multi-million dollar grant that the Fire 
Company is involved in hopefully receiving that will help with firemen costs.  This grant involves Blair County and 
Southern Centre County Fire Companies and helps firemen with childcare costs, tuitions, etc.   
 
Mr. Kirsten reminded residents that the Easter Party will be held on Sunday, March 24th from 2-4 p.m. located at 
the Municipal Lane Building. 
 

14. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business before the board, the meeting was adjourned at 8:24 p.m. 
 

• MOTION:  Mr. Kirsten moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:24 p.m.; Mr. Pisoni seconded; Vote 4-0-0; 
Motion Carried. 


